
 

Goshen Common Council 
6:00 p.m. January 4, 2022 Regular Meeting 

Council Chambers, Police & Court Building, 111 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, Indiana 

 

Call to Order by Mayor Jeremy Stutsman 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll: Megan Eichorn (District 4)  Julia King (At-Large)       Doug Nisley (District 2)   

 Gilberto Pérez, Jr. (District 5)      Donald Riegsecker (District 1)  Matt Schrock (District 3) 

Council President Brett Weddell (At-Large)     Youth Advisor Adrian Mora (Non-voting) 

Approval of Minutes – December 28, 2021 

Approval of Meeting Agenda   

Privilege of the Floor 

 
I. Election of Council President 

 
II. Appointment of Minority Party Leader 

 
III. Appointments to Boards and Commission 

 
IV. Ord. 5110 (1st/2nd Reading) – Amend 2022 Compensation Ordinance 5101 for Civil City and Utilities 

Employees to Include a Special Firefighter Position  
 

V. Ord. 5112 (1st/2nd Reading) – An Ordinance to Amend the Elkhart Road Planning Unit Development 
(PUD), Ordinance 3574, and Ordinances 4846, 4894 and 5003 
 

 
Elected Official Reports 
 
Adjournment 

Goslten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



                                                                            

1 | P a g e  
Dec. 28, 2021 | City Council Minutes 

GOSHEN COMMON COUNCIL 
Minutes of the Dec. 28, 2021 Regular Meeting  

Convened in the Council Chambers, Police & Court Building, 111 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, Indiana 
 
Council President Brett Weddell called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Council President Weddell asked the Clerk-Treasurer to conduct the roll call. 
Present: Julia King (At-Large)  Doug Nisley (District 2)  Donald Riegsecker (District 1) 

Matt Schrock (District 3)   Council President Brett Weddell (At-Large) 
Absent:  Mayor Jeremy Stutsman, Megan Eichorn (District 4), Gilberto Pérez Jr. (District 5)  
  Youth Advisor Adrian Mora (Non-voting) 
 
Council President Brett Weddell asked the Council’s wishes regarding the minutes of the City Council’s meeting of 
Dec. 21, 2021. Council members King/Riegsecker moved to approve the minutes of the Dec. 21, 2021 meeting 
as presented. Motion to approve the minutes passed 5-0. 
 
Council President Brett Weddell presented the agenda of the Dec. 28, 2021 meeting. Nisley/King moved to 
approve the agenda as presented. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
Privilege of the Floor: 
At 5:32 p.m., Council President Brett Weddell invited public comments on matters not on the agenda. There 
were no members of the public present, so the Council President closed the Privilege of the Floor. 
 
1.  Resolution 2021-32: An Emergency Resolution Providing for the Transfers of Appropriations 
Council President Brett Weddell called for the introduction of Resolution 2021-32. Councilor Nisley asked the 
Clerk-Treasurer to read Resolution 2021-32 by title only, which was done. 
Nisley/Schrock moved for passage of Resolution 2021-32. 
By way of background, Resolution 2021-32 would approve a series of appropriations to be transferred into different 
categories than originally appropriated since the fall 2020 adoption of the annual budget for the year 2021. City staff 
members have deemed it necessary to transfer the appropriated funds into different categories to facilitate the 
various functions of City Departments and to meet emergencies. 
The Indiana Department of Local Government Finance (DLGF) allows each City account line to be spent up to the 
budgeted amount, but accounts may not be spent over the budgeted amounts. If a budgeted category is overspent, 
the Common Council may pass a resolution to transfer a portion of the budgeted appropriation from a different 
category within the same fund in order to keep all categories within state budget limits. 
These four broad categories include: Personal Services (Salaries and Benefits); Supplies (Small projects and tools 
necessary to accomplish the City's work); Services & Charges (Fees for activities necessary to accomplish the City’s 
work); and Capital Expenditures (Purchases of assets for the City, typically over $5,000). Appropriations may be 
adjusted between categories only within the same fund. 
At tonight’s meeting, the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office provided Councilors with a revised and updated version of 
Resolution 2021-32, with end-of-year totals, and an accompanying 2021 Spending Analysis (EXHIBIT 1). 

Gosl-ten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



                                                                            

2 | P a g e  
Dec. 28, 2021 | City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution 2021-32 would authorize the transfer of the following appropriations: 
 
GENERAL FUND – 101 
 
FROM: Clerk-Treasurer/Insurance 101-510-04-413.0501 ($2,500.00)  
TO: Clerk-Treasurer/Other Office Expenses 101-510-04-421.0501 $2,500.00  
 
FROM: Board of Works/Other Office Expenses 101-510-07-421.0500 ($18,000.00)  
TO: Board of Works/Fulltime Personnel 101-510-07-411.0130 $18,000.00  
 
FROM: Board of Works/Education & Promotion 101-510-07-439.0910 ($5,400.00)  
TO: Board of Works/Subscriptions & Dues 101-510-07-439.0301  $2,000.00  
Board of Works/ Other Service Charge 101-510-07-439.0903  $3,400.00  
 
FROM: Cemeteries/Part Time Personnel 101-510-09-411.0140 ($9,600.00)  
TO: Cemeteries/Repair Building-Structures 101-510-09-436.0503  $9,600.00  
 
FROM: Engineering/Other Supplies 101-510-10-429.0001 ($3,000.00)  
TO: Engineering/Insurance 101-510-10-413.0501  $3,000.00  
 
FROM: Building Department/Part Time 101-510-15-411.0140 ($11,134.67)  
TO: Building Department/Professional Service 101-510-15-431.0301  $11,134.67  
 
FROM: Central Garage/Overtime 101-510-18-411.0160 ($8,900.00)  
TO: Central Garage/Garage & Motor 101-510-18-422.0251  $8,900.00 
 
FROM: Police/Full Time Personnel 101-520-11-411.0130 ($70,000.00)  
Police/2002 Benefit 101-520-11-413.1100 ($20,000.00)  
TO: Police/Other Equipment 101-520-11-422.0154  $50,000.00  
Police/Instruction 101-520-11-439.0911  $40,000.00  
 
FROM: Environmental Resilience/Other Professional Service 101-550-46-431.0503 ($25,000.00)  
TO: Environmental Resilience/Capital Projects 101-550-46-442.4601  $25,000.00  
 
FROM: Environmental Resilience /Street Tree Maintenance/Removal 101-550-46-431.0504 ($7,725.00)  
TO: Environmental Resilience/Infrastructure Capital 101-550-46-442.0146  $7,725.00 
 
AVIATION FUND - 206 
 
FROM: Aviation/Other Professional Services 206-530-00-431.0501 ($1,350.00)  
TO: Aviation/Full Time Personnel 206-530-00-411.0130  $1,350.00 

Gosl-ten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



                                                                            

3 | P a g e  
Dec. 28, 2021 | City Council Minutes 

 
ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT - 219 
 
FROM: Economic Improvement District/Other Supplies 219-570-00-429.0001 ($4,000.00)  
TO: Economic Improvement District/Professional Services 219-570-00-431.0503  $4,000.00 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY LOCAL OPTION INCOME TAX (LOIT) - 249 
 
FROM: Public Safety LOIT/Pd Gas/Diesel/Propane 249-520-00-422.0211 ($33,400.00)  
TO: Public Safety LOIT/Fire Retirement 249-520-00-413.0912  $33,400.00  
 
FROM: Public Safety LOIT/Train Facility Maintenance 249-520-00-436.0501 ($1,200.00)  
TO: Public Safety LOIT/Equipment 249-520-00-445.0201  $1,200.00 
 
LAW ENFORCEMENT CONTINUING EDUCATION #2 - 280 
 
FROM: Law Enforcement Continuing Education #2/Firearms 280-520-00-431.0501 ($690.00)  
TO: Law Enforcement Continuing Education #2/Other Supplies 280-520-00-429.0001  $690.00  
 
CUMULATIVE CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT - 402 
 
FROM: Cumulative Capital Development/Building Repairs 402-570-00-423.0110 ($550.00)  
TO: Cumulative Capital Development /Office Equipment 402-570-00-445.0101  $550.00  
 
CONSOLIDATED RIVER RACE/33 TIF - 480 
 
FROM: Consolidated River Race/US 33/Capital Project 480-560-00-442.0000 ($120,000.00)  
TO: Consolidated River Race/US 33/Contractual Services 480-560-00-431.0502  $120,000.00 
 
PLYMOUTH AVENUE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF) - 484 
 
FROM: TIF Plymouth Avenue/Capital Projects 484-560-00-442.0000 ($3,000.00)  
TO: TIF Plymouth Avenue /Contractual Services 484-560-00-431.0502  $3,000.00  
 
SENSORY TRAIL PROJECT - 495 
 
FROM: Sensory Trail/Part-Time Personnel 495-560-00-411.0140 ($20,550.32)  
TO: Sensory Trail/Trail Fixtures 495-560-00-449.0100  $20,550.32  
 
FROM: Sensory Trail/Supplies 495-560-00-421.0500 ($244.69)  
TO: Sensory Trail/Trail Purchases 495-560-00-442.0100  $244.69 
 

Gosl-ten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



                                                                            

4 | P a g e  
Dec. 28, 2021 | City Council Minutes 

 
Council President Brett Weddell called on Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Jeffery Weaver to brief the Council about 
Resolution 2021-32. 
Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Jeffery Weaver began his presentation with a primer on municipal finances and, more 
specifically, the appropriations process. Weaver stated that in the past, he has referred to funds as “buckets,” but 
tonight would be using a new analogy. He said today the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office-received new office supplies, so he 
would be using some supplies that he brought to the meeting to describe appropriations, funds and transfers. 
Weaver likened funds to boxes with each box including permission slips, given by the Council when it approves the 
budget. He said the permission slips or appropriations in each box can only be used for their intended purpose. 
Weaver said a City Department head cannot use appropriations from one box to pay for expenditures from another 
box or fund. If this is done, Weaver said, this misuse of appropriations can be deemed a violation of state statutes by 
the State Board of Accounts. Weaver said municipalities are required to provide extensive documentation on their 
appropriations and the State Board of Accounts examines all appropriations closely. 
Weaver said the only way a City Department can use more funds than available per box or fund is by requesting that 
an additional appropriation be approved by the City Council and there must be a corresponding reduction from 
another account after the overall budget is approved. 
Councilor Riegsecker asked about the number of buckets (or boxes or funds) the City has. Weaver said the City 
has an estimated 80 funds, but the number is growing because the State is requiring separate funds for each federal 
grant. Weaver said setting up a new fund is a tedious process and normally requires City Council passage of an 
ordinance unless pre-approved by the State. For example, the City had to approve an ordinance to set up a new fund 
for its American Rescue Plan grant, but a CARES Act grant fund was allowed, so an ordinance wasn’t needed. 
Continuing his explanation of the appropriations process, Weaver said that inside each box or fund are usually four 
binders or categories: Personal Services (Salaries and Benefits); Supplies (Small projects and tools necessary to 
accomplish the City's work); Services & Charges (Fees for activities necessary to accomplish the City’s work); and 
Capital Expenditures (Purchases of assets for the City, typically over $5,000).  
Weaver said that inside of each of the binders or categories are a series of envelopes or accounts which contain the 
permission slips or appropriations. Weaver said City Department heads are careful about their budgeting, but 
sometimes accounts are overspent. For example, Weaver said he learned this week that one department’s health 
insurance account was overspent, but it had extra permission slips or appropriations in its full-time salary account. 
So, Weaver said the extra permission slips or appropriations could be transferred from the full-time salary account to 
the health insurance account. 
Weaver explained that if all of the permission slips or appropriations are used in a specific binder or category within a 
fund, City staff can ask the Council to approve shifting appropriations from one binder or category to another – all 
within the same Department fund. Weaver said that is exactly what the Common Council was being asked to do 
tonight – approve a series of appropriations to be transferred into different categories than originally 
appropriated. Using Resolution 2021-32 as an example, Weaver mentioned some of the requested transfers. 
In response to questions from Councilor Riegsecker, Weaver said that the funds for the Community Relations 
Commission, the City Council and the Mayor’s Office are considered separate boxes or funds. He said that 
categories in each box would be considered separate binders. Weaver affirmed that the expenditures for each of 
those entities should not be paid using the appropriations from other departments. Weaver said the State would not 
endorse this practice and doing could create animosity between City Departments. In response to a question from 
Riegsecker, Weaver said different expenses can be paid using appropriations within each binder or category. 

Gosl-ten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



                                                                            

5 | P a g e  
Dec. 28, 2021 | City Council Minutes 

 
In response to questions from Councilors King, Riegsecker and Weddell, Weaver said that City Departments can 
only pay for expenses using appropriations from within each of the binders or categories of Personal Services, 
Supplies, Services & Charges and Capital Expenditures. City Departments cannot, for example, pay for Personal 
Services expenses from the Supplies binder or category. 
Councilor King said she loved the clarity of this explanation and thanked Weaver. Council President Weddell said 
he appreciated Weaver “dumbing down’ his explanation for the Council and said it was good. Weaver said 
municipalities must comply with many rules and requirements and that the process can be difficult to understand. 
Continuing his explanation of the transfer of appropriations between binders or categories, Weaver pointed to the 
proposed transfer of $2,500 from an insurance appropriation or budget line in the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office to its office 
expenses appropriation or budget line, which was overspent. In response to a question from Council President 
Weddell, Weaver confirmed that insurance would fall within the Personal Services binder while office expenses 
would fall within Supplies. And the Council’s approval was required to allow the transfer between categories. 
Weaver said the City Council’s consideration and approval of the appropriation transfer process between the binders 
or categories takes place yearly. However, he said line transfers within the categories take place without Council 
approval and are done to ensure the City’s books are in order. Weaver said the state also scrutinizes line transfers. 
Weaver said the number of appropriation transfers being requested by Resolution 2021-32 was about normal for the 
City and was not a sign of any problem. Weaver said City Departments are in good financial shape. In response to a 
question from Councilor King, Weaver said the number of transfers requested was about normal for an Indiana city 
the size of Goshen and might actually be below normal. 
Councilor Riegsecker said City staff was not asking to spend additional money overall, but was just asking to shift 
the way some funds were to be used. Weaver and Councilor King affirmed that interpretation. Weaver said that a 
review of any of the boxes or funds would show that City Departments have spent 95% or less than their 
appropriated budgets overall in 2021. 
Councilor Riegsecker asked if the City Council will learn at the end of the year or early next year about the exact 
percentage of their budgets that City Departments spent in the 2021 budget. Weaver said this information was 
shared with City Departments last year and could be provided to the Council. 
Referring to the 2021 Spending Analysis he provided to the Council, Weaver said he would be changing the color 
coding next year because the red-colored “X” can be misinterpreted as being negative when it is not. Those notations 
just indicate that a change must be made. Councilors Schrock and Riegsecker said the red X’s got their attention. 
Weaver gave further detail about the meaning of the red X’s. 
Weaver also provided further detail about the need for the appropriation transfers. He said some budget lines were 
overspent due to a variety of factors. And in most cases, he said the amounts exceeded were not very great. 
Asked by Council President Weddell what would happen if a box or fund was greatly exceeded and expenditures 
could not be paid, Weaver said the City Department normally would need to request an additional appropriation. In 
response to a question from Councilor Riegsecker, Weaver explained the increased expenditures for the new 
Sensory Trail. In response to a question from Councilor King, Weaver said the affected Department members were 
aware they would be able to request transfers to cover the added expenses from other budget accounts. 
Weaver said that altogether, the City has about 1,940 budget lines. Asked by Council President Weddell why he 
didn’t just say the City has just under 2,000 budget lines, Weaver said “because I actually looked up the number.” 
Weaver said that City Water & Sewer Office Manager Kelly Saenz oversees the budget lines for utilities. 
Councilors thanked Weaver for his clear presentation and made several light-hearted comments. 

Gosl-ten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



                                                                            

6 | P a g e  
Dec. 28, 2021 | City Council Minutes 

 
Council President Brett Weddell noted that only City Councilors and City Staff members were present in the 
Council chambers, so there were no public comments on Resolution 2021-32. 
Hearing no further comments or questions from the Council, Council President Weddell held a voice vote, 
and the Council approved Resolution 2021-32, 5-0, with all members present voting “yes.” 
 
 
Elected Official Reports: 
Council President Weddell said he has received no further applications for the three openings on the Community 
Relations Commission, the one opening on the Shade Tree Board and the two on the Redevelopment Commission. 
He proposed closing the application period since the Council will vote on the appointments at its Jan. 4 meeting. 
Councilor King commented on the application cut-off period and whether applicants would be attending the Jan. 4 
meeting. She said one applicant has decided not to attend the Jan. 4 meeting. 
Councilor Nisley suggested allowing people to continue to apply for the board and commissions.  
There were no further Council member reports or comments. 
 
 
Adjournment: 
Councilors Nisley/Riegsecker moved to adjourn the meeting. Passed 5-0. 
 
Council President Weddell declared the meeting adjourned at 5:56 p.m. 
 
 
EXHIBIT 1: 2021 Spending Analysis for Resolution #2021-32: An Emergency Resolution Providing for the Transfer of 
Appropriations 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  __________________________________ 

Jeremy P. Stutsman, Mayor of Goshen 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  __________________________________ 

Richard R. Aguirre, City Clerk-Treasurer 
  

Gosl-ten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



1 

ORDINANCE 5110 
 
 

Amend 2022 Compensation Ordinance 5101 for Civil City and Utilities Employees 
to Include a Special Firefighter Position 

 
 

WHEREAS Ordinance 5101 approves the 2022 minimum and maximum compensation, including wages 
and benefits, for Civil City and Utilities employees. 

WHEREAS City Administration would like to establish a new Special Firefighter position within the 
Goshen Fire Department beginning in 2022. 
 
WHEREAS the Special Firefighter position, authorized by Indiana Code § 36-8-3-7 and approved by the 
Goshen Board of Public Works and Safety, would be a full-time, civilian position. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Goshen Common Council that Ordinance 5101, 2022 
Compensation Ordinance for Civil City and Utilities Employees, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Exhibit A, 2022 Positions, Classifications and Grades, shall be amended to add a Special Firefighter 
position under the Fire Department.  The classification of the position shall be covered, non-exempt 
(hourly), and the position shall be ungraded and refer to Exhibit D. 

(2) Exhibit D, 2022 Wages for Ungraded Positions, shall be amended to add a Special Firefighter 
position under the Fire Department.  The classification of the position shall be covered, non-exempt 
(hourly), and the wage for the position shall be $27.96 per hour. 

PASSED by the Goshen Common Council on January _____, 2022. 
 
             
       Presiding Officer 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
PRESENTED to the Mayor of the City of Goshen on January _____, 2022, at the hour of _____:_____ 
___.m. 
 
             
       Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED on January _____, 2022. 
 
             
       Jeremy P. Stutsman, Mayor 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Goshen Common Council 
 
FROM:  Rhonda L. Yoder, City Planner 
 
DATE:  January 4, 2022 
 
RE:  Ordinance 5112 
 
The Goshen Plan Commission met on December 21, 2021, in regular session and considered a request for a PUD 
major change & PUD preliminary site plan approval for Elkhart Road at Rieth Subdivision, A Replat of Elkhart 
Road P.U.D. – Phase I (Lot 1), to allow for outlot development for a restaurant, with the PUD major change 
including: 

 To allow an outlot, and outlot access via adjacent Lot 1; 
 0’ internal parking/aisle setbacks between Lots 1 and 2; 
 Allow existing parking spaces to continue along portions of Rieth Blvd and Elkhart Road for Lots 1 and 

2, with 0’ parking/aisle setbacks, a portion of parking spaces in the right of way (where additional right of 
way was dedicated), and varying parking stall dimensions; 

 No less than 10’ parking/aisle setback along Elkhart Road for Lot 2; and 
 22’ aisle width west of Rieth Blvd parking spaces for Lot 2 

for the subject property generally located at 2219 Rieth Blvd and zoned Commercial B-3PUD (Planned Unit 
Development), part of Elkhart Road PUD, with the following outcome: 
 

Forwarded to the Goshen Common Council with a favorable recommendation by a vote of 6-0. 
 
The recommendation is based upon the following, with the following conditions: 
1. The proposed outlot is consistent with the overall Elkhart Road PUD. 
2. The approved preliminary site plan is Elkhart Road PUD – Lot 1 Outlot, dated 06.14.2021, prepared by 

Weihe Engineers, subject to required revisions. 
3. The outlot shall provide bicycle parking within the outlot area, shown on the PUD final site plan. 
4. A final landscape plan shall be submitted with the PUD final site plan, listing all plant material, with common 

and botanical names, and size at planting and height at maturity for all tree species. Landscaping shall be 
installed per the approved landscape plan, inspected by the Planning office before a Certificate of Occupancy 
is issued. 

5. New signs will meet the requirements of the Goshen Zoning Ordinance and Elkhart Road PUD. 
6. The outlot is required to connect to City sewer and water, approved by Goshen Engineering, and built to 

current Utility Department specifications. 
7. The PUD final site plan will be submitted as part of the City’s administrative site plan review, Technical 

Review, and Technical Review will include review by Goshen Engineering and Goshen Fire. Review must be 
completed before a zoning clearance/building permit is issued. 

8. All developmental requirements not varied by the major change shall be met. 
 
Please Note: The primary subdivision portion of the application is not part of the Common Council review, as the 
Plan Commission has sole jurisdiction over subdivisions. 
 
No inquiries were received prior to the Plan Commission meeting, and no questions/concerns/comments were 
received from the public at the Plan Commission meeting. 

Rhonda L. Yoder, AICP 
PLANNING & ZONING DEPARTMENT, CITY OF GOSHEN 
204 East Jefferson Street, Suite 4  Goshen, IN 46528-3405 
 
Phone (574) 537-3815  Fax (574) 533-8626  TDD (574) 534-3185   
rhondayoder@goshencity.com  www.goshenindiana.org   

Gosl-ten 
THE MAPLE CITY • 



Ordinance 5112  Page 1 of 2 

Ordinance 5112 
 

An Ordinance to Amend the Elkhart Road Planned Unit Development (PUD), Ordinance 3574, and Ordinances 
4846, 4894 and 5003 

 
WHEREAS Lowe’s Home Centers, Inc., and Weihe Engineers, Inc., submitted an application on the 1st day of 
December 2021 for a Major Change to a previously approved Planned Unit Development (Overlay) Ordinance, 
and the Goshen City Plan Commission did after proper legal notice conduct a public hearing on said Petition as 
provided by the Law on the 21st day of December 2021 and recommended the adoption of this Ordinance, by a 
vote of 6-0. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by the Common Council of the City of Goshen, Indiana, that: 
 
For the property generally located at 2219 Rieth Blvd, and more particularly described as follows: 
 
Lot No 1, Elkhart Road Planned Unit Development – Phase I, per plat filed with the Recorder of Elkhart County, 
Indiana, in Plat Book 21, Page 18. 
 
To amend Ordinances 3574, 4846, 4894, and 5003 as follows:  
1. In addition to requirements established by Ordinances 3574, 4846, 4894, and 5003 additional requirements 

are established by this Ordinance. 
2. That the Goshen Plan Commission did after a public hearing determine the amendment to be a Major Change. 
3. The PUD major change approves the following: 

 One outlot (Lot 2), and outlot access via the adjacent Lot 1; 
 0’ internal parking/aisle setbacks between Lots 1 and 2; 
 Existing parking spaces are allowed to continue along portions of Rieth Blvd and Elkhart Road for Lots 1 

and 2, with 0’ parking/aisle setbacks, a portion of parking spaces in the right of way (where additional 
right of way was dedicated), and varying parking stall dimensions; 

 No less than 10’ parking/aisle setback along Elkhart Road for Lot 2; and 
 22’ aisle width west of Rieth Blvd parking spaces for Lot 2. 

4. The proposed outlot is consistent with the overall Elkhart Road PUD. 
5. The approved preliminary site plan is Elkhart Road PUD – Lot 1 Outlot, dated 06.14.2021, prepared by 

Weihe Engineers, subject to required revisions. 
6. The outlot shall provide bicycle parking within the outlot area, shown on the PUD final site plan. 
7. A final landscape plan shall be submitted with the PUD final site plan, listing all plant material, with common 

and botanical names, and size at planting and height at maturity for all tree species. Landscaping shall be 
installed per the approved landscape plan, inspected by the Planning office before a Certificate of Occupancy 
is issued. 

8. New signs will meet the requirements of the Goshen Zoning Ordinance and Elkhart Road PUD. 
9. The outlot is required to connect to City sewer and water, approved by Goshen Engineering, and built to 

current Utility Department specifications. 
10. The PUD final site plan will be submitted as part of the City’s administrative site plan review, Technical 

Review, and Technical Review will include review by Goshen Engineering and Goshen Fire. Review must be 
completed before a zoning clearance/building permit is issued. 

11. All developmental requirements not varied by the major change shall be met. 
 
 
PASSED by the Common Council of the City of Goshen on       , 2022. 
 
        

Presiding Officer 
 
 



Ordinance 5112  Page 2 of 2 

Attest: 
        
Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 
PRESENTED to the Mayor of the City of Goshen on     , 2022 at ________ a.m./p.m. 
 
        

Richard R. Aguirre, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor of the City of Goshen on      , 2022. 
 
        

Jeremy P. Stutsman, Mayor 



To: Goshen City Plan Commission/Goshen Common Council 

From: Rhonda L. Yoder, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Subject: 
21-01MA, PUD Major Change & PUD Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
21-03SUB, Major Commercial Subdivision, Primary Approval 
Elkhart Road at Rieth Subdivision, A Replat of Elkhart Road P.U.D. – Phase I 

Date: December 21, 2021 

 
ANALYSIS               
Lowe’s Home Centers, Inc., and Weihe Engineers, Inc., request a PUD major change & PUD preliminary site plan 
approval and primary subdivision approval for Elkhart Road at Rieth Subdivision, A Replat of Elkhart Road P.U.D. – 
Phase I (Lot 1), to allow for outlot development for a restaurant. The PUD major change includes: 

 To allow an outlot, and outlot access via adjacent Lot 1; 
 0’ internal parking/aisle setbacks between Lots 1 and 2; 
 Allow existing parking spaces to continue along portions of Rieth Blvd and Elkhart Road for Lots 1 and 2, with 0’ 

parking/aisle setbacks, a portion of parking spaces in the right of way (where additional right of way was 
dedicated), and varying parking stall dimensions; 

 No less than 10’ parking/aisle setback along Elkhart Road for Lot 2; and 
 22’ aisle width west of Rieth Blvd parking spaces for Lot 2. 

The subject property is generally located at 2219 Rieth Blvd and is zoned Commercial B-3PUD (Planned Unit 
Development), part of Elkhart Road PUD. 
 
Elkhart Road PUD was established June 1, 1993, by Ordinance 3574. The preliminary plan included one large 
commercial lot, the subject property (Lot 1), and additional smaller commercial lots along Elkhart Road and Rieth Blvd. 
PUD final site plan approval for the subject property was granted on June 15, 1993. The Elkhart Road PUD has been 
amended by Ordinances 4846 (to allow shed display area for Lot 1), 4894 (to allow a multi-tenant freestanding sign on 
Lot 18), and 5003 (to modify setbacks for Lot 18 after right of way acquisition). Uses and developmental standards follow 
the B-3 District. 
 
Major Change to Elkhart Road PUD & PUD Preliminary Site Plan 
The current petition seeks approval to create one outlot (Lot 2) for restaurant development within the existing parking lot 
of Lot 1. Separate ownership is proposed for the outlot, so a subdivision is required, a replat of Lot 1 to create two lots 
(outlot and remainder of Lot 1). Approval of the PUD preliminary site plan is requested with the PUD major change. 
 
According to Goshen Zoning Ordinance (ZO) Section 4250.9, PUD major changes include those which reduce on-site 
parking, affect traffic circulation and utilities, increase the intensity of use, and encroach into required setbacks, which are 
characteristics of the current request. The Elkhart Road PUD did not anticipate a second lot (outlot) as part of Lot 1, but 
does allow all B-3 uses. The current request is to approve the outlot and to address the developmental deficiencies for the 
two lots. 
 
Access and Traffic Circulation 
Access within the Elkhart Road PUD is required to be from Rieth Blvd only, except for one entrance to Lot 1 from 
Elkhart Road (existing). The outlot access is therefore proposed across Lot 1, so the new lot will have no direct access to a 
street. No physical separation is proposed between the two lots, so 0’ parking/aisle setbacks are proposed internally 
between Lots 1 and 2. 
 
Parking Spaces, Aisles and Parking/Aisle Setbacks 
Subsequent to the platting of Lot 1, additional right of way was acquired along both Rieth Blvd and Elkhart Road, 
resulting in existing parking spaces that appear to extend slightly into the right of way in some areas. For the development 
of Lot 2, no changes are proposed to the existing parking spaces along Rieth Blvd, so the major change includes allowing 
the existing parking spaces to remain for both lots (except for Lot 2 along Elkhart Road), including the slight right of way 
encroachment, a 0’ parking/aisle setback where additional right of way was acquired, and varying parking stall 
dimensions for existing spaces. 



21-01MA & 21-03SUB  2 

 
Along Elkhart Road, Lot 2 development is proposed with no less than a 10’ parking/aisle setback for a 10’ landscape 
buffer. Lot 2 also includes an aisle width of 22’ west of the Rieth Blvd parking spaces. 
 
On-Site Parking 
In the B-3 District, each use has a specific parking requirement, and the Elkhart Road PUD follows parking requirements 
by use. Lot 1 use is classified as a department store, requiring one space per two employees plus one space per 400 square 
feet of display/sales area. The Lot 2 restaurant use requires one space per two employees, plus one space per five seats at 
maximum seating capacity, plus five stacking spaces for each drive-through service. 
 
Based on prior reviews and the current submittal, parking after the development of Lot 2 would be: 
 
Lot # of Employees SF Display/Sales Area # of Seats Required Parking Parking Spaces Provided
1 80 121,000 SF NA 343 spaces ~483 
2 13 NA 65 20 spaces + 5 stacking 30 + 5 stacking
 
In addition to on-site parking for vehicles, bicycle parking should be required for the outlot, as a recent trail connection 
was constructed along Elkhart Road, immediately adjacent to Lot 2. Goshen's PUD district regulations, Section 4250.4.J 
of the Goshen ZO, include accommodation of pedestrian and bicycle traffic as a required design standard. 
 
Landscaping 
PUD requirements for landscaping follow the ZO requirements, and for the outlot development streetside trees will be 
required. A landscape plan has been submitted, and the streetside landscaping requirements are met. 
 
Signs 
No specific sign information has been submitted, so all signs will follow the B-3 and Elkhart Road PUD requirements. 
 
Drainage and Utilities 
The outlot will be required to connect to City sewer and water, approved by Goshen Engineering. Site plan approval by 
Goshen Engineering is required for site drainage, post construction, site utilities and right-of-way access, as applicable, 
before a zoning clearance/building permit is issued. 
 
As part of the City’s administrative site plan review, the plan for fire protection (including hydrant placement and access) 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Goshen Fire Department. 
 
The proposed major change is consistent with the overall Elkhart Road PUD, as originally established and as amended. 
No change of use is proposed and developmental requirements will be met, except as modified by PUD changes. 
 
Major Commercial Subdivision, Primary Approval 
According to the Goshen Subdivision Ordinance (SO), a major subdivision involves two or more lots along with the 
establishment of a new street or easement of access, or substantial changes to existing drainage systems. Major 
subdivision approval occurs in two phases, primary and secondary subdivision. The primary subdivision is intended to 
show a total development plan, including physical features, proposed lot layout, proposed street patterns, land to be 
reserved for public use, sewer and water extensions, and drainage facilities. A subdivision replat follows the applicable 
process, in this case a major subdivision. 
 
The Plan Commission has exclusive control over primary and secondary subdivision approvals. Primary subdivision 
applications may be granted approval, granted approval with conditions, or disapproved (SO Section 530). Approval may 
be granted only if the conditions of the Goshen SO are met. The Plan Commission may waive only those conditions found 
exclusively in the Goshen SO, and may not waive any standards found in the Goshen Zoning Ordinance (ZO). 
 
The current petition provided the secondary plat drawing for the primary review phase, which is acceptable in this case 
because it is a replat of an existing subdivision lot. 
 
 

I I 



21-01MA & 21-03SUB  3 

Subdivision Evaluation 
Based on review of the subdivision and Goshen SO and ZO standards, the following conditions are required as part of 
primary approval: 
1. The replat must include both Lot 2 and the remainder of Lot 1, and the full legal description. 
2. Lot 1 building setbacks should be revised to 35’ along Elkhart Road and 30’ along Rieth Blvd, with the prior building 

setback lines removed. 
3. Lot 1 must include dimensions of all existing/proposed easements. 
4. In lieu of, or in addition to, the new access easement from Rieth Blvd for Lot 2, a note shall be added to the plat that 

acknowledges access across and parking on Lot 1 for the benefit of Lot 2. 
5. Drainage easements shall be added if a shared stormwater drainage system is proposed. 
6. The following items are missing or incorrect (sample page enclosed): 

 Statement of Utilities 
 Drainage Maintenance Certification 
 Land Surveyor Certificate (requires date of signature and seal) 
 Deed of Dedication (needs to include both lots and signature line for owner, with name and title) 
 Owner’s Certification (add printed name and title of owner with signature line) 
 Acceptance of Dedication 
 Plan Commission Staff Approval 
 Auditor 
 Recorder 
 Required size of plat for recording is 18 inches x 24 inches. 

7. The 10’ landscape buffer applies only to the Elkhart Road frontage of Lot 2, and must be removed from the Rieth 
Blvd frontage of Lot 2. 

8. An easement should be added for the existing Elkhart Road PUD main identification sign, which appears to extend 
onto Lot 2. 

 
Conditions to be met prior to secondary approval, and requirements to be completed before a zoning clearance/building 
permit is issued, are outlined in the following section. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS             
Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward a favorable recommendation to the Goshen Common Council, and the 
Goshen Common Council approve the major change to the Elkhart Road PUD & PUD preliminary site plan, to allow for 
outlot development for a restaurant, based upon the following and with the following conditions:  
1. The proposed outlot is consistent with the overall Elkhart Road PUD. 
2. The approved preliminary site plan is Elkhart Road PUD – Lot 1 Outlot, dated 06.14.2021, prepared by Weihe 

Engineers, subject to required revisions. 
3. The outlot shall provide bicycle parking within the outlot area, shown on the PUD final site plan. 
4. A final landscape plan shall be submitted with the PUD final site plan, listing all plant material, with common and 

botanical names, and size at planting and height at maturity for all tree species. Landscaping shall be installed per the 
approved landscape plan, inspected by the Planning office before a Certificate of Occupancy is issued. 

5. New signs will meet the requirements of the Goshen Zoning Ordinance and Elkhart Road PUD. 
6. The outlot is required to connect to City sewer and water, approved by Goshen Engineering, and built to current 

Utility Department specifications. 
7. The PUD final site plan will be submitted as part of the City’s administrative site plan review, Technical Review, and 

Technical Review will include review by Goshen Engineering and Goshen Fire. Review must be completed before a 
zoning clearance/building permit is issued. 

8. All developmental requirements not varied by the major change shall be met. 
 
 
Staff recommends the Plan Commission grant primary approval of the two-lot major commercial subdivision, Elkhart 
Road at Rieth Subdivision, A Replat of Elkhart Road P.U.D. – Phase I, based upon the following and including the 
following conditions, which shall be met before secondary approval is granted: 
1. The B-3 requirements for minimum lot area and lot frontage are met. 



21-01MA & 21-03SUB  4 

2. The Elkhart Road PUD, Zoning Ordinance, and Subdivision Ordinance requirements are met except as modified by 
PUD changes. 

3. Subdivision approval is contingent on approval of the PUD major change by the Common Council. The PUD major 
change must be approved before the plat is accepted and before secondary approval is granted. 

4. The drawings, application and fee for the secondary subdivision shall be submitted to the Planning office, and Staff 
may review on behalf of the Plan Commission. The secondary subdivision shall address the technical corrections 
identified in the above Subdivision Evaluation section. 

5. The initial site plan review by Engineering and Fire through Technical Review must be completed before the 
secondary subdivision is submitted so that any unanticipated site plan impacts on the plat may be addressed. 

6. Per SO Sections 511.6 and 571.10, the final plat shall include all easements dimensioned and identified to their 
specific use, including all existing easements and all required new easements, for access, sign and drainage, for 
example. 

7. Per SO Sections 512 and 812, an overall subdivision drainage plan shall be prepared and certified by a registered 
engineer or registered land surveyor, submitted to the City Engineer, and approved by the Board of Works before 
secondary approval is granted. If Goshen Engineering determines that an updated subdivision drainage plan is not 
required, drainage may be approved through the site plan review. Any required drainage easements for a shared 
drainage system must be added to the plat, with review/approval by Goshen Engineering before the plat is accepted. 

8. Infrastructure is existing and no new infrastructure is proposed, so no performance bond/surety is required. 
9. Connection to City water and sewer is required, and utility extension plans shall be approved by the City Utility 

Engineer. 
10. After all identified corrections are made, reviewed and approved, dedications and easements shall be accepted by the 

Board of Works per SO Section 820 before secondary approval is granted. 
11. When secondary approval is granted, the signed plat will be provided to the applicant for recording, with two full size 

recorded copies provided to the City. 
 
The following conditions shall be met before a zoning clearance/building permit is issued for any individual lot: 
1. The secondary subdivision shall be reviewed and approved and a recorded plat on file before a zoning 

clearance/building permit is issued for any individual lot. 
2. Site plan review/approval through Technical Review is required for each lot/building before a zoning 

clearance/building permit is issued. 



PUD

PUD

B-3

B-3 B-3

Fenmore AveCounty Road 45

Fen
more

 Ave

Fa
irla

ne
Av

e

Old 
Cou

nty
Road

 17

Ri
eth

 B
lvd

County Road 117

Gray
bil

l A
ve

Rieth Blvd

Elkhart Road

2219 Rieth Blvd

2021 Aerial
Printed December 3, 2021

´
0 150 30075

Feet

The City of Goshen's Digital Data is the property of the City of Goshen and Elkhart County, Indiana. All graphic data supplied by the city and county 
has been derived from public records that are constantly undergoing change and is not warranted for content or accuracy.  The city and county 
do not guarantee the positional or thematic accuracy of the data.  The cartographic digital files are not a legal representation of any of the features 
depicted, and the city and county disclaim any sumption of the legal status they represent.  Any implied warranties, including warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose, shall be expressly excluded.  The data represents an actual reproduction of data contained in the 
city's or county's computer files.  This data may be incomplete or inaccurate, and is subject to modifications and changes. City of Goshen and 
Elkhart County cannot be held liable for errors or omissions in the data.  The recipient's use and reliance upon such data is at the recipient's risk.  
By using this data, the recipient agrees to protect, hold harmless and indemnify the City of Goshen and Elkhart County and its employees and 
officers.  This indemnity covers reasonable attorney fees and all court costs associated with the defense of the city and county arising out of this
disclaimer.

Department of
Planning & Zoning

204 East Jefferson Street, Goshen, Indiana 46528
Phone: 574-534-3600     Fax: 574-533-8626

The City of Goshen
1 inch = 300 feet

Site Location

Proposed Lot 2

I I I I I I I I I 

lorilipscomb
Line



'· 

,. 

Elkhart Road PUD 

,. 

KWWU11&a\.0"18 ~ W.· 
PD Q.1A'CAAT AA) - t+:1<:,: I 

,m,: ...a, t:>,r,}!'.llll 

-

I 
I 

Lot 1 Outlot 

I 
I 

I 

I 
/ 

I 

I 

I 
I 

// 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

/ 0 

I 
I 

0 

PART 

SIG!I..W:.E F'OR TME PROPERTY SMALL AOMERE 
TO Tl-IE SIGAAGE ldJ.OrJ,'AAJCES AAJO 
REQUIREMEIIITS OF THE 83 .i!CM!I..IG a: El.Kti'RT 
RO PUO DSTRICT. 

P-6RKIHC LOT MJO STREETSIOE WiOS~PIN(} 
SAAU. I.IEET NORMl\L ZONIHC OOOE 
REOUIREIAOfiS AHO ~'dll 8E Fl!Ud.lZED \lffTH 
THE Fl!~ PUO PlAH, 

PARKING DATA 
8.JllDING ARE',: 
PARKING SPACES: 
PJ.RKING RATIO: 

REQUIRED PARKING; 

LOWES NET LDS,S.: 

2.46.3 SF 
2S 
I ~ 2 E1IPUJYEE .t: I 
PER S Mj)X SEATING 
CH'PCrrY 
20 (13 EUR.DY'EES AT 
SHln CHANCE, 46 INOOOR 
SEATING .!k 20 OUTOOOR 
SEATII•~} 
87 

LOT INFORMATION 
PRCPEffl O'il/UER: LOWE'S HOtlE CEIIITERS, 111..C 
ENGINaR: 'ilJEIHE ENGINEERS 
LOT l4<£A: 0.72 ~ES 
ZONING: F'\JO 
P,LRCEL 10: 20-0~36-2S1-003.000-013 
EK. IMPER\;IOUS AREA: 29,969 SF 
NE\I.' IIAPER"1UM AREA: 24,376 ~F 
NET LOSS 5,593 SF 

17,123 SF 
I 
8 Si-V'DE -t 2 OPSIW,1ENTAL 

INTERIIW. PAAKIHC/tlJSLE rt 
8UILOIHC (FRCffiACO Y>' 

lfiNOSC'liPE 8VFFER {FROHT{lf,:() 10' 

ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY 
OF LOT 1, ELKHART ROAD SUBD, PLAT BOOK 21, 

PAGE 1B INST. #93019391 
IN NE 1/ 4 OF SEC. 36, TOWNSHIP 37N, R5E 

GOSHEN, ELKHART COVNTY, INDIANA 
0.717 ACRES 

l&!NN!NCMTM~ttl-MW'ESflMOJTMtl.lWl!'Tbltti:ltil,,NielffO,WA.VFOltAlffll 
ltM.OMM!OWlll>WNT'Al.l._.,HUIA!k~,M)THf.&OCll'Mm,t'l'C/1-Wal,,lMA:alL&M 
Alll!fXacll!DINM11"1U1111fflll.Ma:llltl?.-:tll,, nea80Cll'Mc»camn 211,..,,-noe.mxN:11 
wm'A!,a,SAl)WlfflJll!O,TkfLNn!Oo\lDIIMlll'TOfWl«&itllrl'sflB2CDfflNUM 
~MID---&lelOCll'MIIC-.lll~aa::clll!SWIIT~~1'ML'IZIIO!ffltD 
C,-,•MlNU'l'IDa~mW'B'rJaa~,,...HOlll'TMffla'aOO ... UTIIQIIKZIII:. 
MffAHOW 'R>MAIICl'llr 1m....-1.1aut."fUT'R>MIOIOUTWWClfWIU'&N 
K.l~u.l.lt fl&ltCIIOUTM50Gal.liiS1.0Wll!llllatm:NCIIWI' ALCMMID....-nt IUllll DFWlt'f 
l.lRlff,t.lflftnJMJIO(tn't11--.~0J'it'~..,_Ollllll(II.UOJQ.ffJ. 

LOCATION MAP 

1. Ml .-ot"lt aholl c.ompl}o with th8 GoohSn City, lndiono Cod8" ond ~l.ondorde, ToU'lnic.ol 
Sp,cltiOOf,0116, Oltd OIi otl'lef' op~ieOblb reql/ir81nflt'lt8 , 

2. It ia trie eon,trocto(e reapon&ibillty to ob~in, 011 114088:80,Y penniU) ouociat8CI -.«n 
11'18 iM~IIOtion, • n,otlfY fflUfliC:ipol ond •tat• 0981'1,Cie& on,d utility componiee IIO',i'IIQ 
juri.:liction,, ond to coordinot• oll inapcction, requir8d. 

3. Contract« to be ruponelb!e for th& prot&eUon of new ond • xla1tn9 strvctur•, 

~-~~:t~«~::r:r.• ~D:~(~t\~~t•EN:l~~:.••k ~:l~ f:l&~ 0~oi:• :r':u~: !~Ing 
tr• M, Oomoge,:p roullfno from c,onstruclton octlvllfu 01"9 to b* repa1"'1d l:,j Conlroclor 
at no oddltlonol c,of\ lo Own • r, f¥1Y domooH Wloll be broi.iohl to tht lmmlildbte 
<Jtt4nUon of th• Enoln1,1u. 

4. till •.trlttcn dfmcn,loro, cootdtnotx:t, bo,il,.._,,, ond ott-.c:r •<rlttcn dotio g,:,.-c,n. Prior to 
,torti'no ••ot'lo: oH dolo r, ID be vet'lfl'cd by tlw conttQctor. 

S. Col'Cll.llt U'lgincer rcgording p,oFOSCC9 c.hongcs, rdoc.ation. o, modif,c.olion, pior tD 
tho el::ort of wot'lc. 

e. Loc.atiot'IIIS of oll e.,tic,ting ~grvphic.ol foot\lre« oro boe:od upon o •vt"l-e"/ b)' Woih• 
019it1b!lrb. 

7. AH a•poud oraoa or dietutOb'J eonl'I or& to b• lfni&II gro<Hd ond eodd•d/&Md8CI o:& 
per ths l"8QUireM«1t& of o locol nurae,y licenMd by tM stat• of lt1diot1. 

:r7.~~t~in':::rm;n.:lunu~•:ilh~~9o:~~ o~f d~: ::ri*N:=:u~t ~= gu,pClae 
pennlttb::t use,• 

PUD _,.. 
W2104.20 $TL 



FO

FO

FO

FO

FO SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E
G

G

G

G

SAN

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

EEE

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

22.7'

6.9'

5.9'

5.4'

LANDSCAPE PLAN NOTES
SOD - SOD SHALL BE CERTIFIED GRADE CULTIVATED GRASS SOD OF
"ADVENTURE BLEND" TURF TYPE TALL FESCUE (BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR)

MULCHED LANDSCAPE BED

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

1

2

3

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

SIGHT TRIANGLE

MULCHED LANDSCAPE STRIP
(O/O TO FURNISH LANDSCAPING PER ORDINANCE)

REQUIREMENT: PROVIDED:

LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS
REQUIRED:

ELKHART RD (188' OF ROW)
4.7-3.1 LARGE OR 6.2-4.7
MEDIUM OR 9.4-6.2 SMALL
TREES

RIETH RD (130' OF ROW)
2.2-3.3 LARGE OR 3.3-4.3
MEDIUM OR 4.3-6.5 SMALL
TREES

68' ELKHART FACADE
14 SHRUBS OR 1.9
ORNAMENTAL TREES
68' FRONT FACADE
14 SHRUBS OR 1.9
ORNAMENTAL TREES

29 PARKING SPACES
(NONE REQURIED)

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S 

A
N

D
 IS

SU
ES

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
:

22
19

 R
IE

TH
 B

LV
D

, G
O

SH
EN

 IN

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

C
H

EC
K

ED
 B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

BT

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y
:

D
W

G
 N

A
M

E:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

O
.:

D
A

TE
B

Y

06
.1

4.
20

21

BT
D

A
TE

:

BT

Know what's

R

C
H

IP
O

TL
E 

- G
O

SH
EN

W

S

N

E

SCOTT SCOTT RUCKER P.E. 11300279

W
EI

H
E

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

e

APPROVAL PENDIN
G

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIO
N

W210420 STL

W
21

01
90

 S
TL

SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

6,
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 3

7 
N

, R
AN

G
E 

5 
E,

 C
O

N
C

O
R

D
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
, C

IT
Y 

O
F 

G
O

SH
EN

, I
N

D
IA

N
A.

STREET SIDE LANDSCAPING
STREET TREES SHALL BE PLANTEDED IN THE ROW OR PRIVATE LAND ADJACENT TO THE
ROW IF THERE IS NO ROOM IN THE ROW.
TREES SHALL BE BETWEEN 40' AND 60' (IF LARGE TREES ARE USED) ALONG THE ROW (LESS
THE DRIVEWAY). IF MEDIUM 30'-40' AND SMALL 20'-30'
TREES SHALL BE AT LEAST 4' AWAY FROM PAVEMENT, 30' FROM TRAFFIC INFORMATIONAL
SIGNS, 10' FROM FIRE HYDRANTS & UTILITY POLES. SMALL TREES MUST BE 10' AWAY FROM
OVERHEAD LINES AND MEDIUM TREES MUST BE 20' AWAY FROM OVERHEAD

FOUNDATION LANDSCAPING (OPTIONAL)
FACADE FACING THE STREET OR THE PRIMARY CUSTOMER ENTRANCE
1 ORNAMENTAL TREE FOR EVERY 35' OF FACADE OR 10 SHRUBS FOR EVERY 50' OF FACADE
PLANTINGS MUST BE WITHIN 15' OF BUILDING FACADE. 8' WIDE FOUNDATION PLAN WITH A
MINIMUM 48SF.

PARKING LANDSCAPING
PARKING AREAS CONTAINING 30 OR MORE PARKING SPACES REQUIRE ONE 8X18 INTERIOR
LANDSCAPING ISLAND WITH 1 TREE EVERY 20 PARKING SPACES.
IF ADJACENT / ACROSS THE STREET FROM RESIDENTIAL REQUIRED HEDGE PLANTINGS 4'
O.C. (SUBSTITUTE 1 SHADE TREE PER 10 SHRUBS OR 1 ORNAMENTAL TREE PER 6 SHRUBS)

GENERAL NOTES
1. IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE PLAN AND THE PLANT LIST, THE PLAN SHALL DICTATE.  IF IN QUESTION, CONTACT THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT.
2. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL EXISTING UTILITIES PERTAINING TO THEIR PHASE OF WORK.  UTILITIES ARE

SHOWN TO BE APPROXIMATE. CALL UTILITY LOCATE PRIOR TO ANY PLACEMENT OF PLANT MATERIAL OR OTHER LANDSCAPE MATERIAL.
3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN AND PAY FOR ALL PERMITS AND FEES THAT MAY BE REQUIRED FOR HIS PORTION OF WORK.
4. ANY EXISTING TREE(S) AND/OR PLANTINGS THAT MAY REQUIRE REMOVAL BUT ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLAN AS BEING REMOVED SHALL BE

PROTECTED AND BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO DETERMINE IF TREE(S) AND/OR PLANTINGS SHOULD BE 1)REMOVED,
2)SAVED AND INTEGRATED INTO THE LANDSCAPE DESIGN, OR 3) RELOCATED.

5. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW THE SWPPP SERIES PLANS FOR STABILIZATION (SEEDING/SOD/MULCH) REQUIREMENTS.
6. PLANTING BEDS AND PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE LOCATED AS INDICATED ON LANDSCAPE PLAN. IN THE EVENT FIELD CHANGES OR CONDITIONS

REQUIRE MODIFICATION TO THE LANDSCAPE DESIGN, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSULT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AS TO PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS
PRIOR TO PLANTING. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ADJUST PLANT LOCATIONS ON SITE IF NECESSARY.

7. ALL PLANTS ARE TO MEET OR EXCEED AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK, LATEST EDITION, AS SET FORTH BY AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF
NURSERYMEN.

8. PLANTS SHALL BEAR A TAG SHOWING GENUS, SPECIES AND VARIETY.  REMOVE AT TIME OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE.
9. PLANTS SHALL BE CERTIFIED BY THE STATE OF INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND FREE FROM DISEASE OR HAZARDOUS INSECTS.
10. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN WRITING PRIOR TO BID DATE OF ANY PLANTS THAT HE FEELS MAY NOT SURVIVE IN

LOCATIONS NOTED.
11. NO SUBSTITUTIONS OF PLANT MATERIAL WILL BE ALLOWED WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE JURISDICTION HAVING AUTHORITY AND THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT.  IF PLANTS ARE SHOWN TO BE UNAVAILABLE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO BID DATE IN WRITING.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPENSATE THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR THE TIME REQUIRED FOR REVIEW AND INSPECTION OF PROPOSED PLANT
SUBSTITUTIONS BID AWARD.

12. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE SPECIMEN QUALITY. SUBMIT COLOR PHOTOGRAPHS OF PROPOSED PLANT MATERIAL TAKEN IN THE NURSERY WHERE
THEY ARE GROWING. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INSPECT PLANT MATERIALS AT NURSERY OR CONTRACTOR YARD PRIOR TO
DELIVERY TO THE SITE. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT MAY ALSO INSPECT AND APPROVED OR REJECTED PLANT MATERIAL ON THE JOB SITE. IN THE
EVENT PLANT MATERIAL IS NOT THE SPECIFIED SIZE OR QUALITY, PLANTS WILL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE.

13. PLANTS AND OTHER LANDSCAPE MATERIALS TO BE STORED ON SITE WILL BE PLACED WHERE THEY WILL BE PROTECTED AND NOT CONFLICT WITH
CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.

14. COMPOST SHALL BE A WELL DECOMPOSED, STABLE, WEED FREE ORGANIC MATTER SOURCE. IT SHALL BE DERIVED FROM: AGRICULTURAL, FOOD, OR
INDUSTRIAL RESIDUALS; BIOSOLIDS (TREATED SEWAGE SLUDGE); YARD TRIMMINGS; SOURCE-SEPARATED OR MIXED SOLID WASTE. THE PRODUCT
SHALL CONTAIN NO SUBSTANCES TOXIC TO PLANTS AND SHALL BE REASONABLY FREE (< 1% BY DRY WEIGHT) OF MAN-MADE FOREIGN MATTER. THE
COMPOST WILL POSSESS NO OBJECTIONABLE ODORS AND SHALL NOT RESEMBLE THE RAW MATERIAL FROM WHICH IT WAS DERIVED.

15. SHRUB AND PERENNIAL BEDS SHALL BE PREPARED BY PLACING 3” OF APPROVED COMPOST OVER PULVERIZED TOPSOIL AND ROTOTILLING TO A DEPTH
OF 6”.

15. PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE SHALL BE APPLIED IN ALL PLANTING AND GROUND COVER BEDS PRIOR TO MULCHING AT RATES SPECIFIED BY
MANUFACTURER FOR EACH VARIETY OF PLANT. PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO
APPLICATION.

16. ALL TREE AND SHRUB PLANTING AREAS TO BE COVERED WITH 3" THICK LAYER OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH.  ALL GROUND COVER BEDS
SHALL BE COVERED WITH 1" SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH.  BARK MULCH SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND SHALL BE
UNIFORM IN TEXTURE AND COLOR AND SHALL BE FREE OF STICKS, LEAVES, SOIL AND FOREIGN MATERIAL.  NO UTILITY MULCH OR PROCESSED TREE
TRIMMINGS WILL BE ALLOWED.

17. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL LAWN AREAS AND PLANT MATERIAL UNTIL ALL PUNCH LIST WORK HAS BEEN COMPLETED AND WRITTEN FINAL
ACCEPTANCE BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER. MAINTENANCE SHALL BEGIN IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH PLANT IS INSTALLED AND SHALL
INCLUDE BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATERING, WEEDING, PRUNING, DISEASE AND INSECT CONTROL, MOWING, RESETTING OF PLANTS TO PROPER GRADES
OR UPRIGHT POSITION, AND ANY OTHER PROCEDURE CONSISTENT WITH GOOD HORTICULTURAL PRACTICES.

18. ALL NEW LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FOLLOWING FINAL ACCEPTANCE AS DETERMINED BY
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNER.  AT THE END OF THIS PERIOD, PLANT MATERIAL DETERMINED TO BE DEAD OR UNSATISFACTORY BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT OR OWNER SHALL BE REPLACED AT NO ADDITIONAL CHARGE BY THE CONTRACTOR.

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

MULCHED LANDSCAPE BEDS

LANDSCAPE PLAN NOTES

PLANT NAME

QUANTITY

PLAN
KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE # B & B BARE CONT

ON CENTER
SPACING

SPECIAL
INSTRUCTIONS

ROOT CONDITION

CANOPY DECIDUOUS (SHADE) TREES
SEE PLANXArS ACER RUBRUM 'SOMERSET' SOMERSET RED MAPLE

ORNAMENTAL UNDERSTORY TREES
SEE PLANXAxG AMELANCHIER X GRANDIFLORA 'AUTUMN BRILLIANCE' SERVICEBERRY

22 1/2"

21 1/2"

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS

SEE PLANXQrF QUERCUS ROBUR FASTIGIATA COLUMNAR ENGLISH OAK 32 1/2"

EVERGREEN SHRUBS
SEE PLAN518"IgC ILEX GLABRA 'CHAMZIN' NORDIC HOLLY

SEE PLANX6#3

ELKHART RD
188' OF ROW

5 LARGE TREES

RIETH RD
130' OF ROW

4 LARGE TREES

68' ELKHART FACADE
11 SHRUBS
3 ORNAMENTAL TREES
68' FRONT FACADE
11 SHRUBS
3 ORNAMENTAL TREES
17 ORNAMENTAL GRASS

19.5'X8' ISLAND WITH TWO
ORNAMENTAL TREE

CA CEANOTHUS AMERICANUS NEW JERSEY TEA

X

N/A

MIN. 18"

MIN. 18"

N/A

N/A

EVERGREEN SHRUBS
SEE PLAN818"PaH PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES 'HAMELN' HAMELN FOUNTAIN GRASS X MIN. 18"
SEE PLAN918"CaO CALAMAGROSTIS X ACUTIFLORA 'OVERDAM' OVERDAM FEATHER REED GRASS X MIN. 18"

1

1

2

3

l 
~ 

I 
; . 
~ • • 
I 

i 
! 
H '. i;~ ~·u ,1
1 II ~ 

,. 

,. 

I 

I 

p 

0 

8 

* SC/IJ.E: 1" = 20' 

0 10 20 



• 11Vfi¼WZWfi¼¼¼Vfi¼WZWAZZZWtrfi¼WZWfi¼¼¼Vfi¼WZWfi¼WZWAZZZWtrfi¼¼¼Vfi¼WZWAZZZWtrfi¼WZWAZWZZZttZZZW?rfi¼WZWAZZZWtrfi¼WZWAZZW?rAZZZZZZWAZZZZZZWAZZZZZZWAZZW?rAZZZZZZWAZZZZZZWAZZZZZZWAZZW?rAZZZZZZWAZZZZZZWAZZZZZZWAZZW?r~AZZZZZZWAZZZZZZWAZZW?r~ • 

EU(Wffl' l'f.\l.O l'Vll - MISC 1 
A/ti 80>: tl.AICE ti 

tSr. f03b18J81 

o-w•11a1111:MTM~ 
• ::~WTO:::, --·--...... ottr., 
~ ..,..,.,~ fO.NJ 

~- --OlltMll&JWQJQ.IDIMT 
WJCCl.n'.rfll'MOIIET 
• IIIOHTOl'f/11.V--.,-flOI.II) .. --

-

ELKHART ROAD AT RIETH SUBDIVISION 
A REPLAT OF ELKHART ROAD P.U.D. - PHASE I 

SBCl'ION 36, l'OWNSBIP 31 NOllTB, llANGB S EAST, CONCORD TOWNSIIIP, ELIHART COUNTY, lNDIANA 

w*• 
s 

SCA1.£: 1"= 100' 

W"+4 
o oo ,m too 

SECONDARY PLAT 

P.U.O.twa1,...,lt n-llHOla'HIMTQI.MTWtOfl&'fflk 
DEMT.~lVMlltt,.Q"fYOFtlOltt:k.~NI 
:.t.-~fLRIZOClttOQf'Wll«~~,aPJ«I Of 

MO. MIICBl!ITI..CW!'B>llWJl,'8&iRl't,a1 ~EENJM::Al .. _ 
.....,lffMMI IWM.JIMHCIIJ'WrUIIIOfMLM'Tll>H:ICMIMllff'OI 
Wl'i't'JIOlt~JIICIIH>M~ltMT'IUIN' ...... ~Nf>,,.ICUTIMW'I' 
..n'CIPYtll(tl.MJIICltu.l.lltM~t.:N'TIUaff..--111'1P .... 'ft&IQIOUffl 
ooA:1'f&IJe111111/l"El11,t:,ea:QIICJeffllfT~w.owur I.IEOf1l£IMTEl)N:ll:&III 
RIOHTOl-'IM'l':ll-1'Fam 'l"H80: ~NIJIUJllflfilCIMl8Tl.Nl OWTHP~• 
kMJT'Bla&tlED:Wfl&1'Ell $:II.SIA:Er. 'l"HBD: a.-JTBtete::D,f» 
..-r a:it.111AET; 'l"l1BD: ~Sf~ot fM'T#IO~ 10 
M Almll maa:>MSTuaat't,.,.1'0 O,VIJNI.Hl'°"u.&.-
nalOIICUTM.~1•..,1/TD· WCIOU'nCM»ffOl'Wl'IY 
ua111t.n ..,TO'rNlf'OIHTCPa:11-.0. w:,aoai.ar01.• 
oo.n~ 
1"flQEn61:'lfl'fl"HM~~Ola::MIDJIISFOJDMt 

001 1/11'M! tcUTM!!IMIClln' CCWl!lt Ol'l.01 ta f!I.JN.lla'.a.lOMIII !TM~ 
naeollMTM• aMIDa..urlllONXIIIGIWIIT.M.OmTMIIOIU'TWWllll'RILNO, 
INOLO'TtB.UNl'TTOTHIPIOIH'Tf/1....._'nDCll..mtW....aOO..,,.I» 
a::oal,_.,w.M~ 11all::flCllffl4R,.._W....nM:•ac:QIIIJMl'T:IZ.Q 
REl'Tl:>TI« ~fllQtfTOf-_.,,... Cl' FIIETHEIQUl,f,Wfll;; THN:lliCIVTH:s:ICUJl&M 
QO-..,rQIICIJ~WESTAU;JNIIJIA/O~AIQH'f'Of-.._YLNl.aJIOAEFr:Tie,IQE 
IClFrl'H•oe&E61faJ,MJT'Elllii&tltED)lflQN:lll .._t2fU:T;N.:WntffCE3REB!IIID...nulCII 
~W'TDLMAETTOT..: illF'C i&l8f JO&i'~UE<:IFUJT ~ 'l"tBID; 
tcUrM M De'lN!l!t• loMffl!ll • te:IOlCIII f.MTM.CICO&IID ~ U)I! ~ "9l" 
1'01MIJICl,MTO,-....ca. 

- I -- ,, 
I 

I . 

1111~ 

',. __ , 
I 

I 

' ~ --ii:lir6-.. *·-UIC.IDI! 

'lllil--""'11:r. 
CMG Goshen. LLC 

I.Nl)~cmawDliTI 

1,w.lH~....,~fflln'fNfi\WIJ .......... ~IH~MTH 
11£ IAllltllflf 11£ WOO"E Of UGW. ™"11111 PIN OOflil'l:TLY~ A tl.R'l£'r 
00M\El"6)~camFEDfftME<WNQlllllftR 11.llltl: rtt,.THI,. Tl£.......-rfM.LIIE. 
..,.._ SOCM:Wn<aOF-~FUn'. ~ 1llt illCOlR)II 'tCIE. W!THll-lE ~ tJf 
1M!JU.n'Ml~MI> MJ'nl!lltl..CIOUl0M.M!. 'Mt!N//JIM,,..._.NW. -·-
IWiil'Miii(ii:iwii(ht..i&&il _.,_ 
l('l"EJ'OE ~CF'OEAEM.amut9°'"'Mll~~OO 
te:en'tJ«Gf'F,flUIT,N«Jal!ICWDl Mil~ amrrE fl. : : ; D:lWffll ntE .-ntN 
PW. 

1HIJ ...... aWJ.IIIQIAIMfNfl/OOIIICIWITIDM&AWIG'ftQIIOATM'Tlitl.80MMIIH 
#GOOMll8TIWOIEIJ:IT......a!ED:&. 

IIU.aTABEYltMIO ..u..EMIN/0 W tFUI tlPJIICOl lll-fOIIIIM'. Nfl IC,, WlOFGd: ~ 
AAl!HIN!l'f'Clm::lffl!I) TOM IIUIIJC. 

naff'u..mr:ta'TIIIIIO(...,_N!l,_.,am,aua,eMalOHltOMTHaPUIT,~ 
fNQCU-M>'l'ICJ'la'WnYU,ao,n11.,,..,.., naw9WI..NWKTKICM 
Mi'llt'TilNDJ«IIDULCllNIJCIR~ 'nt:.,,..,Clf'QIIIIQIHOIQIIINOHffWJIIAfMP 
WMB> ~. Ae,&MiD ~ nE WEOF nE RIEl,tl;:: lfflJTIEIJ ~ THE.~ 
l»'~N«JEMR U&l#G---=tCRIIIWIEFN:::IUT& 

---------........ _______ _ 

#OTOTttE.£ilollD,,UITt&Eltl'll£IUIIWIED. 
ro II! !lt!tffl!!D OftlliliM»I!) \FON Mil.,...,. 

»wJ.1'MlnatfflLll.,Ullr1'01MI 
1Ml"°"'OJl1'MICllllll«MOf'cmat&O!'at,1'MII 

---""'°"----~-· 
...... .. _____ ~ 

) ... 
"""""""-----> 

.. ----- --

n»mw,.._..ii,.,:x-!lalloD • WEIHE 1on,N.COllci .. A'f"tllrM 
at:lluqlolilll., llr.U1111. • t:aSO --no1,&«R 1a 2021 BRrAN CHANDLER - ECUPSE REAL ESTATE 

6402 CORNELL AYENUE 
ENGINEERS 
lml~l<MBO,mle 

n•1""•Hll 110 .Sl .. 64oOI 

INDIANAPOUS, IN 46220 
PHONE: (317) 614-5103 

..._,.._,. Jl7 I e+J • OU6fn 

• 



SAMPLE PLAT SIGNATURE PAGE

0:, .. 
,n .. 

statement of utmt;es 
,._,, ~! di ~-J 'l,fGnt.t lo It-• :1\t \OIi Gmt,'°"' Ill~-- 1,jifll} <~ •• '.JldM611J1 
f•o,tt• l"i'"»ft~""' ~.Pl.bile •~ C~PC"1' °'' ...... ,ftfl;,1Jle wLTiy ~-
....,,o tf'I«)' howa a c,U~at. ,at l•r!•l,lf"',Gf wthw1,, to ~ ___ .,..c.• ~ '"-'" •ot:IIIPKt ....-
a,c:c...,.t _, .... gr.,tr. 10 ~fldl. OiOC .. N ~10~ ,_._..., _,,.-,r ........_ p f"'lelnt 
..,..,..,. ._ ccr... ..... ?O'•• crct • 1'11, •••fll •~•"-cM P .,..,-o;,,'111 • lt"I .. l'l1te.-n•1 
IHQC(Jlli, 9'1)' W'IC""-"' Ol"'CI Ol'"• .,,_Wt-CH "'• WCl"I Gian; Q"'<I 0-.- '"• ~lnpt: of ""1G 
da91QMS'-.cl O"I IN, plat '"o,t .. •,.,tll!/ ~t"' tr,< !!'\II ,._,... o, ~ TN p~-.,_C 
Ill '°"' _,_ • !l,. NWII". -Oler, 01111. 4"~ttic.. cn:i ~IW'• ~ .. Fdwdrtq l"11 • Ohl II 
Vff l~• tliffU. ..., ... MKHftl"'f Cltl4 10 ~G'"'1 l0ll • tt,i °'""' •ervct _,.." 10 ...... 
oopc-...11,ot1., 1-ot•tt.., • •tti t.ht «-?"1' ro .,.,., \14)01' &11 ",.,,,,..,,,. ,.,. ~c •lll1lu •I 
.- ,...,.., rtt •t "'' r"t ~~• ,,~ ~ •o '""" .-.o • ..,. '"'fflfflH Of\a ltHt. 
SV...ot, OI llop ""QJ: 1twJt IF'.ll.,,.. 9ttN Olflt -...c~ ~,,,t, •~L No CSTTIIP4ilkl t...11•~ 
,i'l(III H plot~ ... Nl1 .....,.f"lt. h\ '°""~ ff"lof k wtH fo, ~ 8'i1'WN.. 
tc1--'-..,.1- °""Cl 0-.11.,. ~ ttlr:tt ., ..,,~ ll"ltir••11 • "' tr .. uH .or 111C1ld ~• !er 
awct. ~ .. ua,~ .. 

Dralnaao Ma!oteoao0o Cpr;UflcatJ0a 
flt• ~J.-QIIN-. Of !!I •~ ~ fl ., ft- J"ttJ tur.,.,,_ •~ •• :J• .-pl 11"' l._. .._Oll\..,._.IIJ f'T 
~ let ~~e•1 aic: ""9 ;1,.,.,., r-a- perm L a~• or ,r...w vr-1 er ...._,c:1 f,31(,1, ... 'o II• ~1.tn,dlfQ: • 
•M1~ or ID " ftl'I/ ~ hi~ , .... ~tw O't «llff ocr ... ., U\'CIUOI'\ •tdc f'SdlOH. \lll '"'· ..... t 
Mj IW&.-'- -~· 1•a btCO"M ~., W. NrtOO"· t ~HM.~.""'°" ••i o-1 ,,.. 14l O'af"'•' •• 
f'CtO' ~•c~ -«•11~ at ,1 .. ~'I rq,..,,. 

.., u,. -~· ., '"" -lef'I,, .. "U,,,,f'• ,. '"..,,Oi-1 -.c-. ~ ,~ ! let " eocf'f -- til'IC.1 ....... °""opnll~• 4I01oeffl'Tl~tal aaltia,,ty of iJlc 01, ot f~.,. llrOIOf'\"a, rr-=r rtt1cr .mt.."I dro11,oi;9: 
,OCl:tlc,e Dl"CI lll",Y01¢• ,,.. Cfl.1• Gf a.Cf! •toe1« 1• tl"'I )QI 0 • 1'1_, ff\e 011 Gf (;O«Mll, tnC,-.OOCL ~ 
lf"O"llfld an. __,n!Ml oc-r-o,t • ol o,rw1't ,.,_ •1141• , .. I~ ,-,Ooeit 1:1t ,..-i,:e.,""4 J:lft, ~fl!' 
'«• Un r,,, .. l,ol 0,..f'tr-- ·- mtot.a r .... 0,..&11111, of Oir1f QIIIMMM'IWll t()I' , ... COi•• Qf -.iU'I 
,,.poi,~ ... ---·-- ny ,11·• .,..,,.M~ICI O..l"" 1,, .rd. COl'ltl1 ' ·"· • lleft ~ u. ,_ .1:1,. ot 
IJ,tla1 _..,.,., Vd t;r- ~•.._Cl"'I: tti• ll t• 1o.a ~-

f'tjl OtJ 41 ~ ~ h Miti.1111" von!tf# d;h1 oJ xt!Oti tv l"'ec atn.tklA ti Nii1 
I 11Metfdtlft• 1•Qf'n I"'~ Qt ~. 0"'11 f,w th.I!" t<nO(.--.,tt OI tulo I~ .. ff.lie ,..~..-~ JI """1.'1 
m:llft~ er. t.,ir-.att 1.."., th .. te.--, ~ r• '$tau or rilM:l"t!L ..,,, 91.iO\" cClllect.."' wro/or 
~~• Ot',:io,- ..tt• k """011!10i--i-.. n I~ Cfllr,;t'"" c' ~,. );,,~t~ •' ~N 5'fll t if)# ti,~ 
r,:,; ...,. si,. ccrr,,r-o•"-C"- ~ tw,1111 , •era 

Syrygy Statement 
rh · ....-' ~• • oc:c.o,4o.-,~ tri~ 11th! 86:lri. -'r-lAO• 1. C1i.ia,lf' t, •' ti"_. lf'l4o-te Ad;,.,..,,.11'1111~ 
Cock a 1•tt ! j,le l\o'e, , I !°'II p$01 oor,t~IPJV 10, 41 NI'~ CHIPCl"'ff D1 .)tfff'e'J 1.. 8ofNI. D'S. 
...t ~ Pll.1•• bt.ft,li,l er .....,_ t '· 101'1 ~ bU·o NK«ud ... I~. Oftl,u of ,~. lltec«ciitt 
.., r•~ c..i,.,.,. • -,,.-\,Ill"...,, 10:2, >0;i• t 

Syrvoypc's CertJf!cato 
I, .,...1• a, S.. h1tft.. ~tN07 c•t.li, lhc:.t I .,, o -on4 M .,.,or ..iutu.J I' &'Of'tP ,one.- e ltli lti. 
ls"" •• ~ .. ,t.cJI• •• bu: .. , u,:,t u,11 .. •~• ~u, ,-..,na-fttt ., ..,,-,,,., ~ W'la.t ""t 
.»-Kt ~e,¥'a,o,, h occonk1oc.• • lr: t.AC. &tb--1-12 .nd tt'lal all U-.e l'T'IOnUirMlta . 1, tM
Wlt•S!«I .,_ !1it.ce,'dCM.~ • !tk ~11• ~~ t 1 .... r,,"OV~ ~<-,,. oPd ,,,..a, "'"" ~~no• 
.,.,., tw,. ml m ;\,rlul •• «"""1•.i, ~flt'. 

j otf~ ~ l.._ C,.!'1100 ... •:tt r,-iJf')., IJIM.~ ,,..-i"" l:r ~ , . ~ ic,;r• to ,-_,_.t ..-ti 
r;."C,j6, !.~lty fU+l'Tlt-w" In ,,., .. ,~,. wnltt.t r..cull'N b1 .;• 

Shoup-Parsons/ Rappatta Minor Subdivision 
A Port of the Northeast Quarter of Section 21 Township 36 North, Ronge 

6 Eost, Elkhart Township, Elkhart County, lndlono 

Peed of Pedlco-tlon 
ttt: .. ,.dww-,-9\. u.,.,,, 4. ft.Q&!pci.lta......, oi f1"_t r_. ut.a11 c.."l(j'a,. irJ ~ .._ . • 

"•at.>1 •01 otr pa.t,. .,.ti ~ ,..., ,o-.! ••nr n!fJI• "' ,:K,.Co,dtl~ • "' ff'I• ~U--.ft ss::o~ T"li11 
11L11Jdraw .;-.a,i ii• •r...- ..,. tl......,,..a,""' o• Sclt-D.:.t.w•:s<Pmevt~!ll)lltgr- ~ ••,-""•t 
w,d al!•·,. Gt'C M-t.c oc,vi IPX-H ..-.o., 9'Jd rot hretofg,-o: 0.0"--a'ed. Q!'• .,_ab., Oec:ks-l.a to It·• 
,i.bil.. t-rori, bul~IIJ NUIOCi Qlliq -• a-.a, •t.«tL-iJP,ff OI mo,.,. ~ l,- ,.,, tJ.,#eelll ~ 
Irie:& rd 1, • ,,.oo.,tr IW'e .r ln• •lu1tL tt'i•• .-..- k .-stt,o " m• La"'-' .. o :-,ii...;-, o< 
,trwct.,, Tl.• 11"0a o4' 9'wro """" °" t.h'- p,,ot o,O tn«".d -c~.., t · , 1.....wd to, ,~ • "-" 
t4 •• .. puibl'IC: u1,1,1e1, ,.,. t.••• tn.n•et1«-1 1111 •Ola Sid .... ., f"M! .... pdirs. -.,cu .• If•" ~ • m 
11"'4 drot'IOQa f.GGFU.• ..,.,..__, o-t .. ill""'• • to ~ ~ ow~.-,-. cr,d t111 t>i~ ~~, r," .. , 
TH.-wd ho ~ff't O OU!. idrottufn err-• to t:• .,.d..s e, m-o..-te!eMI ~ S'!)lid: llr"C", 0.1 

1'14. b.11 ..,, •• to! Iv~• l,t 1t, • ~ ....... t•• H ,Ir l hi .,,C,jft \ U, tri. t""'1• •f ,.,. thltric:: 
wH IIH. O"'\lt le ltlt• t1d'ill t.11 ~ ..,.,~, ~ •L .. ..- ta,U ,i1 Lttl• Ma~,llttiOfl 

Notary Public Certificate 
ll..t~• el •H'I• ) 

-fi•'"""' r,• li • "'"..,_....,,._., • ""'t.4rT J;ANl.c 1ft ORd f;M tiu1III (.or"'-lt :Ill• ~ let• ,~r 
e...,,. Jti• OllOn , ., ... , at'lll •t\."W • ~d It.• .-...nitl1r1 ...-1 1,-. ,- at 

Yfflfou• m_; '1ond: Gnil Ndl th.a .;)!:{ <1a,.1 ~be.c Nl21 

~~lP_.. lr!-!Jl.te~ 
p . ....... , .. 8lt'roct e.w.,t, 

Pion Commisstoo staff Approygl 
Under tr~ wtnor,t)' p,o.,ded by Chcpt~ 174, Act, o• 1~7, eMoled O)' 
th<P Cffl.,q& o\!reembly of 11,o Sto l• o' lndhn<> ond O,dl"cr,ce ocop\N! by 
th• Commor Cou"" of the City ol C<>~h"" l~d.,.,o, 1/111 plol "°" g ver. 
op~rovcl b:t I~• Citv or Coshon. o• fo11owa 

',;,pro·, <I l>Y •h z.,,. ng A<PT"Jn itlrgjo, on bfflo I o! lite C IV "'~"""~ c,,,n,,,,., on on lni1 --l5~_~-tt.~-- doy o• ~ :021 

~ 

15 Marilyn 
i 

J O N E S 

,r r •11 
U ,flNU I 

-•"""""' ........ 
~O<lJJt QM .... _.. .. 
fl • .,,.,um 

Allan Kauffman 
400 MarAyn Avenue 
Cashen, IN 4$526 

A. Roppotto Rev. living Trust 
400 IICOril)'rl Avenue 
Cashen, IN 46525 -

-Sheet 2 of 2 = Nil , • s-
C-1621P 

lorilipscomb
Highlight


	01.04.22 Council Agenda
	2021-12-28-Council-draft-minutes
	Ord. 5110 - Amend Ord 5101 to Include Special Firefighter Position
	Ord. 5112 PUD



